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Conserving land for our community. 

 

November 1, 2022 
 
Re: Interested Party Status Request on Project # 6971 
 
Dear Town of Stowe Development Review Board:  
 
Stowe Land Trust (SLT) is writing to request interested party status on Project #: 6971, “Increase area of AG-PUD by 
adding Landmark Meadows; Amend Available Density within AG-PUD” (“Project”) and to clarify SLT’s legal interest 
in and rights with respect to the Landmark Meadow parcel.  
 
In 1998, SLT purchased the 16-acre Landmark Meadow parcel (“Protected Property”) from Normad Ramsey for 
$500,000, then sold the parcel to Paul Percy subject to a “Warranty Deed and Reservation of Conservation Easement 
Rights and Restrictions” (“Easement”) at its agricultural value for $20,000. The Easement is attached for reference.  
In the Easement, SLT reserved “all development rights in the Protected Property.” Before the sale of the Protected 
Property to Mr. Percy, SLT obtained an independent appraisal to determine the market value of the development 
rights and the agricultural value of the land after conservation. In valuing the development rights that were 
retained by SLT, the appraisal specifically included a valuation of the Transferable Development Rights (TDR) 
associated with the Protected Property in the context of Stowe’s newly established TDR program. The appraisal 
estimated each TDR associated with the Protected Property would have a market value of $25,000 and a gross value 
of $400,000 for 16 units of transferrable density. 
 
After consulting with SLT’s legal counsel at Monaghan Safar Ducham, SLT has been advised that such development 
rights include the rights to the density allocation that exist on the Protected Property. SLT retained all 
“development rights” on the Protected Property, and therefore, these rights are not Mr. Percy’s to convey. SLT has 
been advised that there is a very strong likelihood that a court interpreting the Easement on Landmark Meadow 
would determine that the rights that SLT retained include the right to use the Protected Property for density 
allocations. The law in many areas makes clear that the density allocation associated with land is a solid stick in the 
bundle of sticks that make up property rights. That trading card is being played all over the country, in various 
municipalities, in various ways to cluster and barter for development. 
 
SLT’s legal counsel has also reviewed whether the Town of Stowe considers density allocation to be a development 
right. Town of Stowe Zoning Regulations do not provide a specific definition for development rights; however, the 
inclusion of “Density” within the “Transferable Development Rights” section of the Regulations indicates that the 
Town considers density to be a development right. Further, the Town allows that development rights that have 
been removed from one parcel but not yet applied to the receiving parcel may be stored in a “TDR Density Bank” 
administered by the DRB. This density bank tracks the densities removed from certain parcels and allows that they 
can be held before being reallocated to another parcel(s). Density allocation is an integral part of what the Town 
addresses in its “Transferable Development Rights” section of the Regulations. Further, in reviewing other 
definitions of “Development Rights” within Vermont, the definitions typically relate to and include density. For 
example, the Vermont Natural Resources Council, on its, website states that a, “Transfer of Development Rights 
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(TDR) authorizes a landowner to remove their right to develop all or a portion of a parcel of land, and to 
transfer that right to develop to another parcel of land which could then be developed more intensively than 
otherwise possible under the zoning standards. 
 
Given that Stowe is one of the few municipalities in Vermont to have a Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) 
program and the Protected Property is in the TDR sending district, this issue is particularly relevant to the 
Protected Property. If the Town permits Mr. Percy to reallocate the density from the Protected Property to 
another area of his fee ownership, any ability for SLT to participate in the TDR program now or in the future 
as the owner of the development rights would be stripped since density is the unit of measurement and 
currency to value development rights within the program. As the property title owner of the “density stick” 
of the Protected Property’s bundle of property rights, it should be up to SLT – not Mr. Percy - to decide if, 
when and how to convey the density allocation to another party 
 
SLT qualifies as an interested party in the project under § 4456(b), part A, “A person owning title to 
property… affected by a bylaw, who alleges that the bylaw imposes on the property unreasonable or 
inappropriate restrictions of present or potential use under the particular circumstances of the case,” for 
the following reasons:  
 

(1) SLT is a registered 501(c)(3) nonprofit. Under Vermont Law, Title 11, Chapter 3, “Nonprofit 
Corporations”, § 3.02. states that “Unless its articles of incorporation provide otherwise, every 
corporation has perpetual duration and succession in its corporate name and has the same powers 
as an individual to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out its affairs…” Thus, SLT qualifies 
for personhood with respect to the Town’s interested party status definition.  

(2) If approved, the Project would impose on the Protected Property an unreasonable restriction of 
present or potential use; SLT’s development rights would be inappropriately affected because only 
SLT has the legal authority to grant title to its held development rights to another party and the 
unauthorize loss of the density allocation could reduce the value of SLT’s real property interests. 

 
This Project will set a precedent for how density allocation rights are considered in the context of other 
acquisitions of development rights via conservation easements in Stowe. These easements apply to acres of 
land and hundreds of units of density in Stowe that are held by SLT, Vermont Land Trust, and in some cases, 
the Town of Stowe itself. It should also be noted that, over the years, the Town of Stowe has invested 
significant public funding in the purchase of development rights through conservation easements on 
private property including Nichols Field in 2004 ($125,000) and, most recently, the Ricketson Farm in 2022 
($200,000). 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Kristen Sharpless 
Executive Director 
 
CC: Mr. Paul Percy 
Claudine Safar Esq. and Kristen E. Shamis, Esq. of Monaghan Safar Ducham PLLC 






















